
P.T.O. 
 

 
www.staffsmoorlands.gov .uk 

Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Tel:  0345 605 3010 

 

  

 

AGENDA 
for a 

MEETING OF THE CABINET 
Tuesday, 21 June 2022 at 2.00 pm  

 Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Leek, ST13 6HQ 
 

Contact Officer: Linden Vernon Email: linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
or Tel: 01538 395613 

 
 

Membership 

Councillors:-  

 P. Roberts 
M. Deaville 
J. Aberley 

K. Flunder 
J. Porter 

S. Scalise 
R. Ward 
M. Worthington 

Leader of the Council (Chair) 
Leisure and Sports (Deputy Leader) 
Customer Services 

Tourism 
Climate Change 

Environment 
Communities 
Finance 

 
 

Reports enclosed unless noted otherwise. 
 

1. Apologies  

2. Minutes of the previous meeting (previously circulated)  

3. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman)  

4. Declarations of Interest, if any  

 1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
2. Other Interests 

5. Matters referred by an Overview and Scrutiny Panel, if any  

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 

A G E N D A  (Continued) 
 

 

6. Items requested by Cabinet and/or Non-Cabinet Members in accordance with 
Cabinet Procedure Rules 8.5(b) and (e), if any  

6 .1 Outside Body Appointments  

7. Reports of Monitoring Officer and/or Chief Finance Officer, if any  

8. Leader  

8 .1 Forward Plan (Pages 3 - 6) 

8 .2 In Person/Remote Committee Meetings Update (Pages 7 - 12) 

8 .3 Member Development Champion Appointment (Pages 13 - 14) 

9. Leisure and Sports  

9 .1 Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities Investment Plan (Pages 15 - 30) 

10. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 The Chair to Move:- 
 

“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the 

business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely 
that confidential information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would 

be disclosed to the public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.” 

11. Tourism  

11 .1 Levelling Up Fund  

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 

any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
) 

 



1 
 

 
CABINET FORWARD PLAN  

 
June – August 2022 

 
The Forward Plan is a list of decisions the Council’s Cabinet intends to take shortly. Some 
of these decisions are known as ‘Key Decisions.’  The Plan is updated and published 28 
days before each meeting of the Cabinet and is available, together with all public reports 
referred to, from our website www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk and offices, Moorlands House, 
Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Should you have any 
questions regarding these documents please contact the Council’s Democratic Services 
Team via our website . 
 
A key decision is one defined as: 
 

"One likely to result in expenditure or savings which are significant having regard 
to the Council's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates." 

 
 OR 
 

"To be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more District Wards." 

 
Documents relating to matters listed, and which are open to the public, will be available 
five working days before the date of the meeting by visiting the Council’s website 
www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk.  They are also available from our offices – Moorlands 
House, Stockwell Street, Leek Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Other documents 
relevant to decisions to be taken may be submitted to the decision maker. 
 
Meetings of the Cabinet are held in public.  However, occasionally, some meetings, or part 
of meetings, may need to be held in private due to the content of the reports to be 
discussed (e.g. commercially sensitive or personal information).  This document indicates 
which reports and dates of meetings where this will apply and the reason for this.  
 
Five days before a private meeting takes place the Council will publish a further notice of 
its intention to hold a meeting in private.  This will again state why this is necessary and 
give the details of any representations received about why the meeting should be open to 
the public.  This will also include a statement of the Council’s response to any such 
representations. 
 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 8.1

http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/
http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/


2 
 

Matter for 
decision 

Key 
decision to 
be made on 

behalf of 
the Council 

Decision 
maker 

Expected 
issue date by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Relevant 
Overview & 

Scrutiny 
Panel 

 
Documents 

submitted to the 
decision taker for 

consideration 
 

Public/Private 
Report 

In Person/Remote 
Committee 
Meetings Update 

Yes The Cabinet 21 June 2022 Leader Resources Report of the Executive 
Director - Governance 
and Commissioning 

Public 

Levelling Up Fund Yes The Cabinet 21 June 2022 Tourism Resources Report of the Executive 
Director (Place) 

Private - Information 
relating to the 
financial or business 
affairs of any 
particular person 

Staffordshire 
Moorlands District 
Council Play 
Strategy 

Yes The Cabinet 21 June 2022 Leisure and 
Sports 

Service 
Delivery 

Report of the Executive 
Director- Governance 
and Commissioning 

Public 

Member 
Development 
Champion 
Appointment 

Yes The Cabinet 21 June 2022 Leader Resources Report of the Executive 
Director- Governance 
and Commissioning 

Public 

Appointments to 
Outside Bodies 

No The Cabinet 21 June 2022 Leader Resources Report of the Executive 
Director- Governance 
and Commissioning 

Public 

Combined action 
plan for delivery of 
the Access to 
Services, Digital 
and Organisational 
Development 
Strategies 

Yes The Cabinet 9 August 2022 Customer 
Services and 
Leader 

Resources Report of the Chief 
Executive 

Public 

 
 
 

P
age 4



3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Cabinet 
 

21 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

In-Person/Remote Committee Meetings 
Update 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 
Councillor Paul Roberts – Leader 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Linden Vernon – Head of Democratic 
Services 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
Non-Specific 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The report provides an update to councillors on the conduct of online and in-
person committee meetings. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the report be noted. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 As a result of restrictions put in place to tackle the Coronavirus pandemic in 

March 2020 it was not possible for council meetings to take place in person.  

In response the Government brought into force regulations that enabled local 
authorities to hold remote meetings.  These expired on 7 May 2021 and the 

Government concluded that it was not possible to bring forward emergency 
legislation to extend the original regulations. 
 

3.2 The Council responded to a call for evidence launched by the Government on 
the use of virtual meeting arrangements to gather views on the question of 

whether there should be permanent arrangements for remote meetings and, if 
so, for which meetings.  The Council supported the view that Council’s should 
have the ability to determine if any of their meetings should be held remotely.  

This may include circumstances where adverse weather may otherwise mean 
that a meeting needs to be cancelled and that such circumstances should be 

governed by rules of procedure agreed by each council. 
 
3.3 The Government has not yet formally responded to the call for evidence, 

however, it has repeated its previous view that any permanent change that 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8.2



  

allows remote meetings to take place would require changes to primary 
legislation. 

 

3.4 Following the expiry of the regulations the Council has continued to conduct 
remote and hybrid meetings where feasible in line with government guidance 

which helps to reduce costs and carbon emissions.    
 
3.5 The Council is currently updating its microphone system which it is intended to 

integrate with the Authority’s webcast system. 
 

3.6 The County Council Network, in association with Zoom, has recently published 
a research report on the use of hybrid meetings.  This indicates a significant 
desire by councillors to adopt a hybrid model for conducting council business 

which has the potential to improve the diversity of elected members in 
councils.   

 
 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

 Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money 

 Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the 
appropriate channels and provided “right first time” 

 Effective use of ICT 

 Meeting the challenges of climate change 
 

 
5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 As detailed in the report. 
 

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (Governance and Commissioning) 

 
 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

Information Digest 
Cabinet Delegated Decision 
LGA Survey - Impact of in-person council meetings 

CCN – Hybrid Meetings report 

Linden Vernon 
Head of Democratic Services 
Linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

01538 395613 

 
 

 
6. Detail 

 

6.1 As a result of restrictions put in place to tackle the Coronavirus pandemic in 
March 2020 it was not possible for council meetings to take place in person.  

In response the Government brought into force regulations that enabled local 
authorities to hold remote meetings (The Local Authorities and Police and 

Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (SI 2020/392), 

Page 8

https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=380&MId=2218&Ver=4
https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=301&MId=2127&Ver=4
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Impact%20of%20in-person%20council%20meetings%20survey%20October%20-%20November%202021%20WEB.pdf
https://www.countycouncilsnetwork.org.uk/moving-permanently-to-a-hybrid-model-of-both-online-and-in-person-council-meetings-would-improve-the-diversity-of-local-councils-a-new-survey-says/


  

made under section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020). 
 
6.2 These regulations applied to all local authorities in England and Wales, 

including parish and town councils. They specified that a ‘meeting’ of a local 
authority could lawfully take place online, with members ‘in remote attendance’ 

who can hear and be heard by, and if possible see and be seen by, other 
members. 

 

6.3 An Information Digest was issued on 25 May 2021 that provided councillors 
with an overview on the use of remote or virtual meetings by the Council.  This 

reported that financial savings of almost £11,000 per annum had been 
achieved whilst utilising online meetings.  Taking into account the typical 
mileage claimed by councillors each year (8,466 miles) this also equated to an 

annual reduction of 2.12 tonnes of CO2.   
 

6.4 The Digest also reported that there had been a total of 4,217 views of SMDC 
committee meetings via the Council’s webcast system since remote meetings 
started, with an average of 80 views per meeting.  Meetings of Planning 

Applications Committee (138 per meeting) followed by Full Council (110 per 
meeting) attracted the most views on average.  Whilst meetings had been 

conducted remotely there had also been an increase in the number of non-
committee members attending meetings indicating that remote meetings were 
also more accessible for councillors. 

 
6.5 Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020 only permitted regulations to apply to 

council meetings that took place before 7 May 2021, primary legislation would 

be needed to extend this ability. Luke Hall MP, the Minister of State for Local 
Growth and Local Government, wrote to council leaders on 25 March 2021 to 

confirm that the Government had concluded that it was not possible to bring 
forward emergency legislation to extend the original regulation.  High Court 

proceedings were instituted last year by Lawyers in Local Government and 

the Association of Democratic Services Officers with regards to this view. The 
Court stated that it was for Parliament to change laws not the courts. 

 

6.6 The Government launched a call for evidence on the use of virtual meeting 
arrangements to gather views on the question of whether there should be 

permanent arrangements for remote meetings and, if so, for which meetings.  
The Council formally responded to the call for evidence (response contained in 
the Individual Executive Decision issued 11 June 2021) which supported the 

view that Councils should have the ability to determine if any of their meetings 
should be held remotely.  This may include circumstances where adverse 

weather may otherwise mean that a meeting needs to be cancelled and that 
such circumstances should be governed by rules of procedure agreed by each 
council.   

 
6.7 If any changes to legislation are made as a result of this call for evidence they 

would apply to England only. The Welsh Government passed the Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 which came into force on 1 May 
and made express provision for Welsh local authorities to meet remotely. 

Scottish local authorities had express provision to meet remotely prior to the 
pandemic. 

Page 9



  

 
6.8 Between October and November 2021, the Local Government Association 

(LGA) conducted a survey of councils in England. The purpose of the survey 

was to gather information on the impact of in-person council meetings for 
statutory and decision-making meetings, and how this may affect councils in 

the short-to long-term. The survey asked about a range of topics including 
councillor attendance at meetings, public engagement, benefits and 
challenges, as well as costs incurred.  Key findings of the survey included: 

 

 Almost three-quarters of respondents (72 per cent) thought that councillor 

attendance was lower since returning to in-person meetings.  

 Almost three-quarters of respondents (73 per cent) thought that attendance 
by members of the public was lower since returning to in-person council 

meetings.  

 More than half of respondents (53 per cent) thought that engagement by 

members of the public with council meetings was lower since returning to 
in-person meetings.  

 
6.9 A number of organisations have continued to lobby the Government for the re-

introduction of remote meetings and campaigned to give councils the ability to 

decide what works best for them.  The supporting bodies have included: 
 

 The Local Government Association (LGA) 

 The Association of Democratic Services Officers (ADSO) 

 Lawyers in Local Government (LLG) 

 Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) 

 National Association of Local Councils (NALC) 

 Society of Local Council Clerks (SLCC) 
 

6.10 A recent petition organised by ADSO and LLG that called on the government 
to create Parliamentary time to agree a change in the law to allow councils in 

England to meet remotely if they wish attracted nearly 11,000 signatures. 
 
6.11 The Government has not yet formally responded to the call for evidence, 

however, Kemi Badenoch, Minister of State for Equalities and Levelling Up 
Communities wrote to ADSO in November 2021 and repeated the 

Government’s previous statement that “any permanent change that allows 
remote meetings to take place would require changes to primary legislation, 
and such passage would depend on the agreement of Parliament and the 

timetabling and pressures of Parliamentary business.” 
 

6.12 In response to a question asked in the House of Commons on 24 January 
2022 to allow parish councils to sit in virtual or hybrid format to increase and 
widen access and to help them work to the best of their ability the Secretary of 

State Michael Gove MP replied: 
 

“If during the pandemic we had not allowed councils to meet virtually, not only 
would we have impaired the effective working of local government, but we 
would never have known about Jackie Weaver and the country would have 

been the poorer for it. I commend the work of parish councils and others. I am 
strongly in sympathy with the view that hybrid meetings should continue in 

Page 10



  

order to ensure the maximum amount of efficiency. There is a case for saying 
that certain significant local authority meetings should occur with all councillors 
present, but I want to proceed with the maximum amount of consensus to 

reflect the maximum level of efficiency and in particular of sensitivity to those 
who serve in constituencies such as my hon. Friend’s, where the rurality and 

dispersed nature of representation are important.” 
 
6.13 Following the expiry of the regulations the Council has continued to conduct 

meetings remotely or by using its hybrid system where feasible in line with 
government guidance which helps to reduce costs and carbon emissions.   

 
6.14 The Council is currently updating its microphone and projection systems, the 

costs for which should be met from recent underspends in the service budget.  

In order to future proof the system the specification includes a requirement to 
integrate to the Council’s webcast system and take advantage of automatic 

camera control functionality.   
 
6.15 The County Council Network, in association with Zoom, has recently published 

a research report on the use of hybrid meetings.  This is based on a survey 
completed by 479 county and unitary authority councillors representing 36 

councils.  The research indicates a significant desire by councillors to adopt a 
hybrid model for conducting council business with 87% of councillors agreeing 
that they would like their council to adopt hybrid meetings for statutory 

business in the future.  Councillors said that using online meetings would 
provide the following benefits for them: 

 

 help to manage time more effectively (67%) 

 make it easier to attend a wide range of meetings (54%) 

 reduce commuting time (61%) 

 reduce their carbon footprint (64%) 

 
6.16 The research also found high levels of enthusiasm for hybrid meetings from 

groups traditionally underrepresented in local government including women, 
people with caring responsibilities, people with disabilities and younger people. 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report to Cabinet 
 

21 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Appointment of Member Development 
Champion 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Councillor Paul Roberts - Council Leader 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Linden Vernon – Head of Democratic 
Services 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
Non-Specific 

 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet’s approval for the appointment of 

an elected member to the role of Member Development Champion to lead the 
Council’s Member Development Working Group. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That Cabinet appoints an elected member to the role of Member Development 
Champion. 

 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The Member Development Working Group is a cross party group which aims 

to ensure that councillors are supported to deliver the Council’s statutory and 
corporate obligations, objectives and priorities and to provide Members with 
the information they need to fulfil their roles.  

 
3.2 The Group develops a programme of training and development opportunities 

for all councillors that is updated on a rolling basis with activities identified 
through a variety of channels. Learning and development opportunities should 
benefit councillors as individuals in their various roles and ultimately have a 

positive effect for the Council and the community.   
 

3.3 An integral aspect of this approach is that the Group is led by a Member 
Development Champion (currently held by Councillor Shaw) who: 

 

 Acts as an advocate for councillor training and development 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8.3



  

 Works with both members and officers to deliver a councillor training 
and development programme which is member led and member 
owned.  

 Encourages councillors to feedback to the Group any ideas or 
suggestions. 

 Leads on and actively promotes the relevance and importance of the 
programme within the Council. 

 Raises the profile of member development within the Council and  

actively encourages councillors to attend training and development 
events organised for them. 

 
 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 An effective training and development programme for councillors helps to 

ensure that corporate priorities are met. 
 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1 The Cabinet is recommended to select an elected member to the position of 
Member Development Champion. 

 

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director - Governance and Commissioning 

 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Contact details 

Annual Review of Councillor Development Reports 
(considered by the Council’s Standards Committee) 

Linden Vernon 
Head of Democratic Services 
linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 
 

  

 
 

Page 14



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Cabinet 
 

21 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities 
Investment Plan 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Councillor Mark Deaville - Deputy Leader & 
Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Sports 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Gareth Knapper - Service Development 

Officer, Robert Wilks - Principal Officer 
(Leisure and Recreation) 

 

WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 

All 

 

 
Appendix A1 - A4  – Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities Investment and 
Delivery Plan. 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 To update the Cabinet on the development of an investment plan for delivery 

of refurbishment works or full replacement of Council owned play and outdoor 
sports facilities across the district. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Cabinet approves the report and supports the refurbishment or 

replacement of Council owned play areas and outdoor sports facilities across 
the district as detailed in the report. 

 
3. Executive Summary. 

 

3.1 Play and outdoor sports facilities are important assets in many of our parks 
and open spaces and it is important these facilities are provided, maintained 

and developed effectively. To ensure this happens, the proposed investment 
and delivery plan detailed in Appendix 1 has been developed and proposes a 
programme of refurbishment and/or replacement of selected facilities over a 4 

year rolling period. 
 

3.2 To develop the plan, quality assessments of existing Council owned play and 
outdoor sports facilities have been undertaken which has highlighted the 
facilities that require improvements, the approximate timeframe for when these 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9.1



  

improvements need to be delivered by, and a budget estimate for how much 
the improvements are likely to cost. 

 

3.3 The estimated cost to deliver the first 4 years of this plan is £320,000 and this 
amount would need adding to the medium term financial plan (MTFP) as a 

growth item starting in the 2023/24 financial year. The impact of this results in 
the additional revenue borrowing costs as detailed in section 6.4 below. 

 

3.4 It may be possible to offset the amount of funding required to deliver the 
proposed programme of works using section 106 funds secured for these 

types of improvements from housing developers. Where this is possible, the 
funds secured will be factored into each project on a case-by-case basis, 
resulting in a reduced cost to the Council. 

 
3.5 During the planning phase for each project, officers within the Council’s 

Leisure and Recreation team will assess whether it is possible to secure 
external funding towards them. If this is possible, it will further reduce the cost 
to the Council for delivering each project. However, should it not be possible to 

secure external funding, the proposed budget request included in this report 
will still be sufficient to deliver all projects to the required level. 

 
3.6 The District Council does not have the responsibility for refurbishing or 

replacing play areas and some outdoor sports facilities in Cheadle but, 

recognising the importance of these facilities to local residents, officers are 
working with Cheadle Town Council to develop an improvement plan for Tean 
Road Recreation ground and Churchill Road Recreation ground. This plan is 

expected to be completed during 2022 and funding via a number of section 
106 agreements has already been identified to contribute towards delivery of 

any plan, once trigger points are met within these agreements.  
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 Aim 1: “To help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities 

to live and work”. Within this aim one of the objectives is “provision of sports 
facilities and leisure opportunities focused upon improving health”.  

 

4.2  Aim 4: “To protect and improve the environment and respond to the climate 
emergency”. Within this aim, one of the objectives is “provision of quality parks 

and open spaces”.  
 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1 To recommend that the Cabinet approve the Play and Outdoor Sports 
Facilities Investment and Delivery Plan at a cost of £320, 000 over a four year 
period from 2023-24. (Recommended) 

 
5.2 To not recommend approval of the Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities 

Investment and Delivery Plan. (Not Recommended) 
 
 

Page 16



  

 
 
6. Implications 

 
6.1

  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

 
Parks provide a range of opportunities for people of all ages to 
engage in positive activities. Outdoor play and sports facilities can 

provide an outlet for young people and help deter them from 
antisocial behaviour, therefore it is important these facilities are 

provided and kept in a good condition.  
 

6.2 Workforce 

 
None specifically. 

 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

 

An EIA has been completed in accordance with the Council’s 
policy. 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

 

The proposed Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities Investment and 
Delivery Plan includes a request for £320,000 of capital funds to 
improve identified facilities over the course of the next 4 years. This 

is a growth item and results in additional revenue borrowing costs 
of £3,680 (23/24), £13,760 (24/25), £13,760 (25/26) and £13,760 

(26/27).Where it is appropriate to do so, s106 receipts will be used 
to reduce the reliance on the Council funding. The risk remains that 
should there be a delay or shortfall in anticipated s106 funding the 

on-going costs would have to be met by the Council. 
 

AES are responsible for the maintenance of play and outdoor 
sports facilities which the Council owns. The maintenance costs 
associated with these schemes can be contained within existing 

revenue budget provision. 
 

Key objectives proposed in the plan may have a financial 
implication, however, until further scoping works are undertaken 
these implications are unknown. Further reports detailing any 

projects which have a financial implication for the Council would 
need to be brought forward at the appropriate time. 

 
6.5 Legal 

 

There are no specific legal considerations at this stage. 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
 
All proposed developments will support the sustainable use of the 

Page 17



  

sites.  
 

6.7 

 

Consultation 

 
As outlined in the report. 

 
6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 

Appropriate assessment will be made of each project within the 
plan. 

 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) and Monitoring Officer 

 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

 Gareth Knapper - Service Development 
Officer & Robert Wilks 
Principal Officer (Leisure and Recreation) 

gareth.knapper@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk, 
robert.wilks@highpeak.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 

7 Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities – Investment and Delivery Plan 

 

7.1 Play and outdoor sports facilities are important assets in many of our parks 
and green spaces. They are key attractions that help children, young people 
and adults keep active, build confidence, gaining physical literacy and social 

skills.  
 

7.2 It is important that these facilities are provided, maintained and developed 
effectively and, to ensure that this happens, the proposed investment and 
delivery plan (Appendix 1) has been developed. The plan highlights a 

proposed programme of refurbishment or/and replacement of selected 
facilities over a 4 year rolling period.  

 
7.3 To develop the plan, quality assessments of existing Council owned play and 

outdoor sports facilities have been undertaken and the facilities which require 

improvements, the timeframe for when improvements should be undertaken, 
and a budget estimate for how much the improvements are likely to cost have 

been outlined. 
 
7.4 Should the plan be approved, delivery of the identified projects will be 

managed by the Council’s Leisure and Recreation Team. An annual review 
will take place where those projects that have been delivered will be removed 

from the plan and new projects will be brought into the cycle for delivery in 
future years. 

 

Page 18



  

7.5   The overall cost to deliver the first 4 years of this plan is estimated to be 
£320,000 and this amount would need adding to the medium term financial 
plan (MTFP) as a growth item, starting in 2023/24. The impact of this results in 

the additional revenue borrowing costs detailed in section 6.4 above. 
 

7.6 There is scope to offset these costs by utilising section 106 monies that have 
been secured from housing developments where improvements to play or 
outdoor sports facilities is required. Where section 106 monies have been 

received by the Council, budget estimates take this into account and the 
request for funds has been reduced accordingly.  

 
7.7 Where section 106 monies have been requested from housing developers, but 

not yet received, these have not been taken into account at this stage. 

However, as trigger points for these monies to be paid to the Council are 
achieved in the future, the amount of capital funds required can be reduced 

accordingly. 
 
7.8 It may be possible in some cases to secure external funding towards some 

projects and, by doing so, budgets could be adjusted down accordingly. As 
there are no guarantees external funding can be secured at this stage, full 

costs have been included accordingly. 
 
7.9 The District Council does not have the responsibility for refurbishing or 

replacing play areas and some outdoor sports facilities in Cheadle but, 
recognising the importance of these facilities to local residents, officers are 
working with Cheadle Town Council to develop an improvement plan for Tean 

Road and Churchill Road. This plan is expected to be completed during 2022 
and funding via a number of section 106 has already been identified to 

contribute towards delivery of any plan once trigger points are met within these 
agreements.  

 

7.10 A recent example of improved play facilities, where improvement works have 
been completed, is at Brough Park in Leek. As part of a wider improvement 

plan for the park, the old play area has been replaced for a new, destination 
standard facility which is more than three times the size of the existing one, 
which caters for much wider age range (0-14 years) and includes a variety of 

play equipment and a new multi-use games area (MUGA). 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Site name Description of equipment / facility Open Space Study rating 
2017 

Potential s106 Contributions Service Commissioning 
rating 2020/21

MTFP Requested Budget Anticipated year of 
delivery

Brough Park Play Area Old play area was small and aimed at the toddler age 
group only. New play area was delivered in 2021 taking 
up a new larger position and incorporating both toddler 
and junior age range play.

Included as part of 
HLF bid but will need 
to be addressed if this 
is not forthcoming.

None New play area installed 
in 2021.

N/A 2021

Brough Park MUGA Original MUGA installed on to one of five tennis courts 
in 2013.  New MUGA installed in a new position next to 
the new play area in 2021.                                                    

None New MUGA installed in 
2021.

N/A 2021

Brough Park Skate Park Fully refurbished in 2018/19 to a concreate skate park. 
Includes five floodlight columns. 

None N/A

Brough Park Tennis Courts (x2) Following improvements to the play and MUGA in 2021 
the two remaining tennis courts were fully refurbished in 
2022.

N/A None N/A 2022

Charnwood Close (Wallbridge Drive) Play 
Area

Site is located in the west of Leek. Only a swing unit on 
a small area of open space. Swings and surfacing 
refurbished in Spring 2017. Potential for more items to 
be installed.

None Question whether we 
would want to increase 
the play items at this 
location or not?

N/A

Cruso Street Play Area Small play area only. Located in the centre of Leek. 
Majority of the site was refurbished in 2010, so 
equipment in good condition.
Issues with nuisance to residents.

None Climber unit is older than 
the other equipment but 
not in bad condition. 

N/A

P
age 21



Glebeville Play Area Small play area and rough open space located in Leek 
south. Equipment is at least 15 years old but in general 
good condition.
Safety surface shrinkage was repaired in 2016, so in 
good condition. Also has a small kick about area and 
basketball hoop.
Fence was painted in 2016.

None Equipment is essentially 
sound but uninspiring 
and low play value. Very 
basic offering and a 
sterile environment. 
Could be conflict with 
residents though over 
any major improvement 
which might drive higher 
numbers of users to the 
site.

£70,000 2023

Haregate Hall Toddler play area located on the Haregate estate. Fully 
refurbished in 2017.

None N/A

Pickwood Rec Play Area Located in Leek east. Small fenced play area with cable-
way and basket swing externally positioned in the wider 
open space. Equipment in fenced area is old and in 
need of refurbishment.
Cableway and basket swing were installed in 2014 and 
2011 respectively so are in good condition.

Milltown Way development 
SMD/2020/0730 (25 units).                    
Off-site play for Pickwood Rec 
£39,040.80                                         
Paid at 25% occupancy

A partial refurbishment 
would be recommended 
within the next 4yrs. 
Some items are older 
than others such as the 
two climbing units and 
see-saw

£70,000 2024

The Waste Play Area Woodland site with some open space on the edge of 
Haregate estate. New timber play equipment install 
2017.

Not listed as a play 
area as equipment 
not installed at the 
time.

None N/A

Westwood Recreation Ground Play Area Village Green type site located in the middle of Leek 
West. Play area and general open space. Site was 
refurbished in 2010 so equipment in good condition. 
New rope pyramid installed in 2018.

None N/A

Woodcroft Open Space
Open space with a cable-way. New cableway installed 
in Spring 2017.

None N/A

Total 140000

Leek
Glebeville Play Area 2023 70,000
Pickwood Rec 2024 70,000*
Total 140,000

P
age 22



*external funds potentially available

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Site name Description of equipment / facility Open space study 
rating 2017 

Potential s106 
Contributions 

Service Commissioning rating 2020/21 MTFP Requested 
Budget

Anticipated year of 
delivery

Biddulph Valley Park Play area on a large park centrally located in 
Biddulph. Located near to the leisure centre. Site 
refurbished in 2010 so equipment generally in 
good condition.
Some issues around sporadic vandalism and anti-
social behaviour at this site.

None Recently suffered an arson attack 
which has destroyed the main 
climbing unit - due for replacement.  
Seems to be a mismatch of 
equipment ages but it would be good 
to look at the rest of the equipment 
in the next 4 years.

£70,000 2025

Brown Lees Play Area Important play area serves the Brown Lees area 
of Biddulph. Play area refurbished in 2011 so in 
good condition.

None N/A

Church Road Play Area Located on Church Road Playing Fields in 
Biddulph east this is an important play area which 
has suffered from vandalism and ASB. Site was 
redeveloped in 2016 as a result of persistent 
vandalism. New climbing unit installed and 
cable-way reinstated in 2020.

None Needs some repair/re-design work to 
sort out the timber sleepers within 
the play area. The play area within 
the fence could be enhanced to give 
more play opportunities and value to 
the lower ages - this would improve 
the play offer for this site. 
Furthermore the items for the junior 
ages which sit outside the fenced 
area and near the MUGA would 
benefit from the underfoot conditions 
being improved.

£60,000 2023

Church Road MUGA Installed in 2010. None. But listed in the 
LFFP and therefore 
could attract Football 
Foundation funding.

Generally sound although some of 
the fencing is now looking tired. 
Recently one of the upright supports 
required resecuring. Floodlights were 
never fully connected and thus have 
never been used.

£50,000 2024

The Paddock Play Area 
(Decommissioned)

Isolated position at the bottom of a bowl. * All 
equipment has been removed from this site 
due to the ASB issues.

N/A

Halls Road Play Area Key site for Biddulph, including new play area 
(2016), MUGA, tennis court, football pitches and 
fitness equipment. 

None N/A

Halls Road MUGA New MUGA installed in 2016 None N/A

Halls Road Tennis Courts 
(x2)

New tennis courts installed in 2016 None N/A

Hawthorn Grove Play 
Area

Items installed as part of development in 2007. 
Only adopted by the council in 2016 with £50,000 
commuted sum.  Equipment in reasonable 
condition and safety surface repaired by 
developer before adoption.

None Small residential play area offering 
limited play but essentially the items 
are all generally ok. Commuted sum 
from Taylor Whimpey (£50,300) in 
2016 for 10 yrs.

N/A

Hot Lane Recreation Play 
Area

Main site for Biddulph Moor. Toddler and junior 
play area. Site fully refurbished in 2017.

None N/A

Mill Hayes Skate Park Metal ramps skate park located next to the car 
park. Skate park is fenced. 

None N/A

Total £180,000

Biddulph
Church Road Play Area 2023 60,000
Church Road MUGA 2024 50,000*
Biddulph Valley Park 2025 70,000
Total 180,000

*external funds potentially available

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Site name Description of equipment / 
facility

Open space study rating 2017 Potential s106 contributions Service Commissioning rating 
2020/21

MTFP Requested Budget Anticipate
d year of 
delivery

Churchill Road 
Rec

Site is owned by SMDC but leased 
to Cheadle Town Council. Play 
equipment for toddlers and juniors. 
MUGA and football pitch also on 
the site. Toilet facilities are closed.  
Currently in talks with Town Council 
re the refurbishment/ 
redevelopment of this site.

Yes - £50k Tuners Pasture. Cecilly 
Mill development additionally has 
funds avilable for the site.

Desire from Cheadle Town 
Council to refurbish the play area 
using money from the s106 along 
with other improvements to the 
site.

Not applicable 2022/23

TotalP
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Site name Desrciption of equipment / facility Open space study rating 
2017

Potential s106 contributions Service Commissioning 
rating 2020/21

MTFP 
Requested 
Budget

Anticipated year of 
delivery

Bluestones Play 
Area

Small play area located on an estate located 
a few miles out of Leek. Site refurbished in 
2014 so equipment in good condition.
No sign.
Grass growing through safety surface needs 
removing and spraying.

None Not applicable

Total

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8.1 Forward Plan
	Key decision to be made on behalf of the Council
	Relevant Overview & Scrutiny Panel
	Documents submitted to the decision taker for consideration
	Relevant Portfolio Holder
	Public/Private Report
	Expected issue date by
	Decision maker
	Matter for decision

	8.2 In Person/Remote Committee Meetings Update
	8.3 Member Development Champion Appointment
	9.1 Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities Investment Plan
	Appendix A1
	Leek Analysis Area 

	Appendix A2
	Biddulph Analysis Area 

	Appendix A3
	Cheadle Analysis Area 

	Appendix A4
	Rural sites



